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MOVE RFI Attachment

Additional Questions


1. What is the vendor’s largest single-node switch currently deployed in operational use in terms of the following:

a. Max number of T1 and keyset ports active in the switch

b. Max number of conferences supported in this same switch

Is this switch the vendor’s latest generation product?  If not, what is the largest single-node latest generation product deployed?  If no latest generation systems have been deployed to date, what is the projected deployment time frame for the first system?

2. Does the vendor planned switch architecture support the following interface types internal to the core switch:

a. 4-wire analog with E&M signaling?

b. 2-wire POTS?

c. 2-wire overhead speaker?

For each of the above not supported internal to the core switch, provide a recommended method for supporting each of the interfaces externally from the core switch (e.g., switch T1 interface to external T1 channel banks, etc.).

3. What is the greatest distance the planned switch architecture can drive a signal to the keyset without redrive/repeater equipment for the following interfaces:

a. Copper Connectivity (as defined in the SRD)?

b. Fiber Connectivity (as defined in the SRD)?

4. With respect to fiber connectivity from the switch to the keysets, will the planned systems be able to support 100/140-micron fiber optic interface?  If so, will this be a modification to your current standard fiber interface?  If so, what is the NRE cost associated with this modification?  Also, what are the overall implications to compatibility of systems built with this fiber interface versus your standard fiber interface?

5. As identified in the SRD, there are several different keyset types required to satisfy the overall requirements of the MOVE sites.  After reviewing the SRD-defined keyset types, provide feedback on the information provided, identify if the keyset types can be further optimized based on capabilities and projected cost per unit, etc.  In general, the vendor is requested to scrutinize the keyset types and provide any feedback that will result in overall savings in the keyset area.

6. Several of the planned MOVE systems will require a large number of keysets as a part of the system deliverables.  Assume a PO is released for production and delivery of one (1) “Large” system (as defined in Table 1 at the end of this attachment).  Identify the optimum production and delivery time frame for the 1000 keysets.  Explain if multiple “drops” of keysets are required, defining how many could be delivered with the switch equipment and the elapsed time between subsequent keyset “drop” deliveries.

7. How will the expected system MTBF and performance requirements be met?  Will the deliverable systems include system-level and/or module-level redundancy?  Is redundancy provided at module level (T1, 4-wire legacy, etc.)?  If so, are they configured in hot standby configuration?  Describe at a high level how redundant modules are to be connected to ensure the availability of any/all interfaces.  Will removal of an interface module cause dropping of any stable voice conferences?  In order to meet the SRD system MTBF and performance requirements, what would be the delivered, populated system sizes for each of the three (3) example configurations defined in Table 1 at the end of this attachment?  For example if totally redundant T1 modules are required, will the size of a small system then be delivered with 40 T1 ports fully populated?

8. Given the definition of example system configuration as shown in Table 1 at the end of this attachment, describe your production and delivery time frames, with parallel/overlapping system builds in order to deliver the following orders:

a. Site #1 -- PO #1 for 2 Medium systems (to be delivered together)

b. Site #2 -- PO #2 for 1 Medium and 1 Small system (to be delivered together)

c. Site #3 -- PO #3 for 1 Large and 1 Small system (to be delivered together)

Use the schedule template identified in the SOW (reference Section 2.3 Schedule Management, Figure 2-2 MOVE Project Major Milestones) to provide estimated relative schedule milestone time frames (relative to the PO Release) for each site delivery.  Assume that the three (3) site POs are released staggered by four (4) weeks) (i.e., PO#1 released at time 0, PO#2 released at +4 weeks, and PO#3 released at +8 weeks) and that deliveries are to be made in the order Site #1 first, Site #2 second, and Site #3 third.  Assume each site delivery will require all of the identified milestones starting with PO Release through the SAT Complete milestone only.  Taking into account all of the required site-specific support (e.g., site surveys, design reviews, generation of site-specific test procedures, on-site installation/configuration, FA/FAT, SAT, etc.), identify the elapsed time for each order, what the overlap time across orders will be (for the earliest schedule delivery on all POs), whether a PO delivery must be divided into multiple drops (e.g., partial number of keysets) and the number of drops with the quantity of keysets in each drop, etc.

9. Plans are for the MOVE contract to include specific schedule milestones for the project and for each MOVE site as identified in the SOW (Section 2.3) that the contractor will be expected to meet.  Contract penalty clauses will be included identifying the consequences of not meeting the required schedules.  An Attachment to this RFI package has been included to show a graphical view of the overall delivery cycles for all of the MOVE sites from PO release through SAT (i.e., does not include site-specific transition schedules).  The vendor should review the schedule information (SOW Section 2.3, SOW Appendix D, and the graphical schedule attachment) and provide feedback identifying any schedule concerns.  Feedback should address the following at a minimum:

a. Is the project start-up time sufficient?

b. Can the vendor support the required site schedule overlaps, including design support for multiple sites, overlapping production cycles, site-specific FAT cycles, shipping/delivery time frames, and on-site installation/test (SAT)?

c. Can any of the site schedules be accelerated (i.e., completed earlier) from what is depicted in the graphical schedule attachment?

d. Identify the most significant schedule risk areas and how you believe each risk can be mitigated (include whether or not schedule changes are needed to mitigate any risks).

10. Using the definitions of example system configurations as shown in Table 1 at the end of this attachment, provide estimates for the total facility space required to support each of the three (3) system sizes (small, medium, and large) independently.  Include redundancy as required to meet the SRD MTBF and performance requirements (i.e., if additional internal ports/cards are required to meet the system MTBF and performance requirements, the size of each system should be increased as required).  Do not include space for keysets.  Provide the following at a minimum:

a. Total number of cabinets required for switch equipment.

b. Dimensions for each cabinet (i.e., H x W x D)

c. Additional space required between cabinets (if necessary)

d. Floor space and/or desktop space required for each management/control station (i.e., Local Site Administrator (LSA) stations)

e. If your architecture does not include support of the 4-wire/2-wire legacy interfaces internal to the core switch, provide estimates for the number of cabinets and footprints for each to handle external interface conversion equipment (e.g., T1 channel banks, etc.)

11. Assume there is to be delivery of a large system as defined in Table 1 at the end of this attachment.  Full system testing is to be performed by the vendor at the factory (i.e., First Article (FA) or Factory Acceptance (FAT)), with NASA witnessing, prior to shipping.

a. How would vendor testing of this type of delivery be accomplished at the factory to functionally verify system performance and system loading?

b. Does this include full testing of the 1000 keysets or only a subset fully connected to the switch?  If only a subset is utilized, how is system performance and system loading verified?

c. Approximately how long would testing of this size system take (in days), assuming the test is to verify every MOVE requirement (i.e., First Article (FA) testing)?

12. Provide a Rough Order of Magnitude (ROM) cost for each of the three (3) example systems defined in Table 1 at the end of this attachment.  If possible provide the following breakout of the overall cost estimate for each system:

a. ROM cost of all equipment (switch, LSAs, keysets) including all hardware and software

b. ROM cost for programmatic support (design review, documentation, FA/FAT, shipping, installation, SAT, etc.)

c. ROM cost for yearly maintenance support (vendor depot (LRU-level) support, 24-hour phone support, etc. as defined in the SOW)

d. ROM cost of just the legacy interfaces (4-wire and 2-wire); if these interfaces are not internal to the switch, provide the ROM cost for your approach to provide these interfaces external to the switch.  (This cost estimate is an attempt to weigh the cost of internal versus external solutions for these legacy interfaces).

13. Provide inputs for acceptable potential payment schedules on a per site system delivery basis.  Assume the delivery milestones as identified in the SOW (reference Section 2.3 Schedule Management, Figure 2-2 MOVE Project Major Milestones).  Identify progress payment percentages based on these milestones (or others if you define them).  For example one approach would be to make all payment for a system due after successful completion of the SAT, if this is not desirable, define acceptable payment milestones and associated percentage of total system cost for each payment milestone.

14. In many cases the new keysets will be installed in existing consoles, racks, etc.  Painting of the keyset housing may be desired to match existing color schemes.

a. Will there be any warranty issues, etc. if each NASA site undertakes having the keyset housing painted after delivery?

b. Can the vendor provide keyset delivery on a per site basis with different color schemes?  If so to what degree would this affect the overall costing of small versus large system deliveries?

15. The SOW identifies the requirements for the vendor to provide support for the MOVE deliverables in the form of a minimum of one (1) year warranty, two (2) years of Basic Maintenance, and seven (7) years of Extended Maintenance.  The intent of these requirements is to ensure the MOVE systems for each site has a minimum of a ten (10) year life cycle.  The vendor is requested to respond with any recommended alternate support approaches (e.g., different methodologies, inclusion of technology refresh, etc.) if the identified support is not feasible.

16. Describe what capabilities could be provided for an electronic transfer/input (versus manual input) to initialize the new system configuration information.  Specifically, will there be an electronic, bulk input capability for initializing conference configuration information (conference names, connection information, etc.); keyset configuration information (line key definitions, etc.); and any other large configuration items?

	System Configuration Information
	Small System
	Medium System
	Large System

	# Keysets
	100
	450
	1000

	# Keyset Ports1
	120
	540
	1200

	# T1 Ports1
	20
	40
	80

	# 4-wire Legacy Ports1
	80
	250
	500

	# 2-wire Legacy Ports1
	20
	40
	80

	# Conferences
	600
	1100
	1800

	# Mgmt WS (LSA)
	2
	4
	8

	Footnotes:

1.  Quantities are “fully populated” number of ports, system sizing is to include an additional 20% over this quantity for delivered “wired-for” configuration.


Table 1

Example System Configurations

17.      In the case of distributing voice to remote Keysets located beyond the distance limitations of a direct switch connection, what type of equipment does the vendor use or require to accomplish this remote connection?  Does the vendor provide this equipment as part of their system?  What are the distance limitations of this equipment?  Is this type of equipment designed and built by the vendor or is it acquired from a third party?  Has the vendor successfully installed and utilized this equipment in an existing similar application?  If so, how long has it been fielded?

 

      18.   What types of vendor in-house design resources are available (i.e. digital/analog design, circuit board layout, packaging and manufacturing design, etc)?  What types of in-house production capabilities does the vendor have (i.e. circuit board, metalwork, integration, assembly, etc)?   What kinds of services does the vendor contract-out to third party entities, in the design and production of its products and systems? 

     19.   How is quality assured? Describe the quality controls (methods, philosophy) that are in place in the vendors’ manufacturing/ production environment.

20. Can the vendor provide a list of deployed Voice Switch(s) and customer with points of contact information?  (For new and legacy product lines)

21. Identify all redundant components in your Voice Switch system architecture, and what components are optionally redundant.

22. Can system be installed in a modular fashion, i.e. main processing assembly(s) in one room and user port cages or nodes located in another room or building.  Define maximum distance system modules/nodes can be separated.

23. Does the Voice Switch support user ID roaming profiles for keyset sign on, and does or can an active session be killed by signing on to another keyset with the same user ID?

a. Assuming the answer to question above is true, will a system message be sent to the user informing him/her of the action taken by the system or ask for an action to be taken? (Message ex.: Would you like to sign off K/S # 1234, Yes/No.  Response ex. K/S# 1234, has been signed off)

24. Explain the methodology and costs (initial and recurring) for providing remote voice services to users.  Remote voice is considered any where off local Center/Campus, but within the CONUS.  Remote user services require at a minimum 7 monitor conferences and 1 talk conference capability.

a. Explain how much configuration control the remote user has on his keyset, i.e. can he/she select and change conferences at will.

25. Explain the system warranties for all components (Software and Hardware), and when the warranty would start, i.e. after Site Acceptance. (for all components)

a. Provide a detailed list of optional extended service plans available for your system, including any depot level costs for repairs.  The MOVE systems have an expected 10-year life cycle of supportable operations. 

26. Explain what and how DB entries can be inputted to the system, can a System Admin. generate DB entries away from the system and import the electronic file(s) as a mass update.  

27. Does the Voice Switch support 2 channel stereo audio, and will the switch support “stereo spacializers” (utilizing left and right channels) that allow a keyset user to separate and/or group conferences being monitored to a selectable audio channel right or left? (i.e. user listens to conferences 1 through 6 in left ear and listens to conferences 10 through 20 in right ear.)

28. What is the voice compression algorithm used in your system, and what is the MOS (Mean Opinion Score) of your system?

29. Do any of your existing customers record voice conferences external to the Voice Switch, is this an optional subsystem for your product line?  

30. Does your system support non LSA privileged users ( Keyset Super User) that can control access to private conferences.  The purpose of this capability is to limit monitoring and talk access to those conferences.

a. The Keyset “super users” are privileged flight controllers, who have the responsibility to control access to the private NASA conferences.

b.  Provide details on a means to control this from a few select the Keysets

c. Can the selection list be predefined and can the users in the list be grouped, making enabling and disabling users access to the private conferences operationally simple.

31. 
Can the LSA construct a partition that would designate another LSA to have only the following capabilities within that partition? 

-Develop the configuration tables which are the keyset user configuration assignments 

-Develop user configuration pages for each keyset 

-Configure the overhead speaker system interfaces independent of keysets 

-Provide real-time changes to the configuration table 
  
Can this be done using a standard LSA with this function provided by user login and password discrimination, or does this require a separate workstation other than a standard LSA?
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